

January 24, 2022 7:00 PM 1 GOVERNMENT CTR. BALLWIN, MO 63011

THE MINUTES ARE PREPARED IN SUMMARY TO REFLECT THE OVERALL DISCUSSIONS, NOT VERBATIM QUOTES.

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Pogue at 7:00 p.m.

ROLL CALL

<u>Present</u> Mayor Tim Pogue Alderman Mike Utt Alderman Michael Finley Alderman Kevin M. Roach Alderman Mark Stallmann Alderman Frank Fleming

Alderman Ross Bullington Alderman Raymond Kerlagon City Administrator Eric Sterman City Attorney Kate Henry

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

MINUTES_

The minutes from the January 10, 2022 Board of Aldermen meeting were submitted for approval A motion was made by Alderman Fleming and seconded by Alderman Finley to approve the minutes from the January 10, 2022 Board of Aldermen meeting as submitted. A voice vote was taken with unanimous affirmative result and the motion passed.

Absent

Alderman Jim Leahy

1



January 24, 2022 7:00 PM 1 GOVERNMENT CTR. BALLWIN, MO 63011

CITIZEN COMMENTS_

Melissa Murphy, 910 Claybend and Wroten McQuirter, 917 Claybend, addressed the Board regarding the Wolf Café SUE and Clayton Ridge parking. Ms. Murphy stated she had attended the Planning & Zoning meeting and appreciated the fact that one of the commissioners had recused himself because of a personal issue. She also stated she believes it is time for them to take their street back and restore their peace and safety. She presented a handout of pictures she had taken. She expressed her concerns with a new business opening, ordinance regulations and the sale of alcohol so close to a school.

David Siegel, 573 Golfwood, addressed the Board regarding items on the agenda. He asked that the Board table Bill 4117 for further discussion because of ongoing issues. He also shared that he had talked with Chief Schaeffler regarding the police vehicles. Mr. Siegel stated he believes the police department should have everything they need to keep Ballwin safe and that we should not be compromising.

LEGISLATION_

BILL 4116 - AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR OF THE CITY OF BALLWIN, MISSOURI, ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, TO EXECUTE A ROADWAY DEDICATION PLAT FOR PART OF LOTS 6 & 7 OF MARY J. EICKERMANN'S ADDITION.

A motion was made by Alderman Fleming and seconded by Alderman Bullington for a first reading of Bill 4116, title only. A voice vote was taken with unanimous affirmative result and Bill 4116 was read for the first time.

Discussion:

Alderman Roach asked for clarification about where the roadway will go which was further explained.

A motion was made by Alderman Fleming and seconded by Alderman Utt for a second reading of Bill 4116, title only. A voice vote was taken with unanimous affirmative result and Bill 4116 was read for the second time.

A roll call vote was taken for passage and approval of Bill 4116 with the following results: Ayes – Aldermen Utt, Finley, Roach, Stallmann, Fleming, Bullington, Kerlagon Nays -- None. Bill No. 4116 was approved and became Ordinance No. 22-03

BILL 4117 - AN ORDINANCE GRANTING AN AMENDED SPECIAL USE EXCEPTION TO ROBERT BIRIBIN D/B/A THE WOLF CAFE FOR SALE OF ALCOHOL IN THE LOWER LEVEL BY THE DRINK FOR CONSUMPTION ON THE PREMISES AND BY PACKAGE FOR CARRYOUT AT 15480 CLAYTON ROAD.

A motion was made by Alderman Fleming and seconded by Alderman Finley for a first reading of Bill 4117, title only. A voice vote was taken with unanimous affirmative result and Bill 4117 was read for the first time.



January 24, 2022 7:00 PM 1 GOVERNMENT CTR. BALLWIN, MO 63011

Discussion:

There was discussion about parking and the need for additional spaces. Planning Technician Shawn Edghill explained how the number was decided. There was also discussion about the codes from when the building opened as compared to today. Alderman Roach thought there was a 20 space deficit; City Administrator Sterman explained that deficit is for the entire building and not just for the Wolf Café. Alderman Roach pointed out that, during citizen comments, it was noted there could potentially be 100 customers.

Bob Biribin, owner of the Wolf Café, stated that because of the square footage, Metro West Fire Department has approved the space for just over 100 people. Mr. Biribin also shared that their goal is to have no more than 80. Alderman Roach asked why they originally said no customers and now the SUE is being amended to 80. Mr. Biribin stated that, at the time, there was no seating. Mayor Pogue stated they were asked about future seating and they were made aware they would have to come back to the Board to amend their SUE once seating was decided on. There was further discussion on the parking around the building. Mr. Biribin stated he truly does not believe there will be an issue with parking as the downstairs area would only be open in the evening, so the overlap time would be from 4 p.m.- 8 p.m., with most of the businesses closing at five.

Alderman Roach asked when the designated parking signs were installed; Justin Riegelsberger, property manager for the building, stated the signs were contracted for in November, but they had just received them about 10 days ago and the signs designate spots for building tenants only, Monday – Friday, 7a.m. – 4 p.m.. Alderman Roach was concerned that Planning and Zoning would have a different conclusion if they would see the lot now and asked if they had been made fully aware. Mayor Pogue stated the signage was mentioned at the Planning and Zoning meeting. Mayor Pogue also shared that they have still been unsuccessful in getting dates from the trustees to set a meeting.

Alderman Fleming asked Mr. Riegelsberger to repeat the calculation for parking; Mr. Riegelsberger further explained. Alderman Roach asked, as it pertains to the SUE, how much parking would be needed on the street; Mr. Riegelsberger replied, that in the evening, no street parking would be needed. Mr. Riegelsberger also shared that he is a bit confused as to why this has become an issue just recently; his contact information has been made available, but yet he hasn't heard from anyone.

Alderman Finley addressed an issue he had with photos presented during citizen comments. He also asked Chief Schaeffler if the police department has received any complaints about the Wolf and their liquor license/sales; Chief Schaeffler replied they have not. Alderman Fleming asked City Attorney Kate Henry about how to word an amendment to the SUE. Ms. Henry explained further and stated the Board has the ability to write something that is enforceable. She then asked Mayor Pogue and City Administrator Sterman if they recall writing time restrictions into SUEs before. Mayor Pogue stated that they have restricted hours for a business before. Ms. Henry stated that if we believe putting specific times will help to accomplish our goals, then we have the ability to do that. Mayor Pogue stated that the cleanest way to do this would be to do as we have previously and restrict hours



January 24, 2022 7:00 PM 1 GOVERNMENT CTR. BALLWIN, MO 63011

for the space. There was further discussion of the parking situation and how it would be affected by business hours. Mr. Biribin stated the original parking issue was because of breakfast and lunch and not with the lower level; the lower level would not be open until 4 p.m. Alderman Stallmann asked about closing time; Mr. Biribin stated that, eventually he would like Friday/Saturday to be 4 p.m. – midnight and Tuesday-Thursday to be 4 p.m. – 11 p.m., but hours would not be extended immediately because he doesn't have staff. Alderman Roach asked if street parking would be needed for those hours; Mr. Biribin said no.

Mayor Pogue made the recommendation to ask the City Attorney to amend #12 to the restricted hours of Monday through Thursday, 4 p.m. – 11 p.m. and Friday through Sunday, 4 p.m. – midnight to stay consistent. Alderman Fleming added that there has been a lot of conflicting information from all parties involved, but the police department did a study which has shown that parking is not an issue nor have there been any issues with disorderly customers. A motion was made by Alderman Fleming and seconded by Alderman Utt to modify Bill 4117 as suggested by Mayor Pogue and table Bill 4117. A voice vote was taken with unanimous affirmative result and the motion passed.

RESOLUTION – A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE AWARD OF A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT IN THE AMOUNT OF \$10,653,000 WITH WRIGHT CONSTRUCTION SERVICES, INC. FOR THE NEW BALLWIN POLICE STATION.

Discussion:

Alderman Roach ASKED questions about alternates and addressing budget shortfalls and how we will handle that. City Administrator Sterman stated the bid is within our budgeted number, but doesn't allow for contingencies which we need and want to have in place for unexpected costs, etc. This is being paid for out of reserves and change orders would be brought to the Board for approval. We could possibly have to use some unassigned general fund balance if necessary. There was further discussion regarding several alternates on the building. Alderman Stallmann asked, to be clear, this is all being internally funded; the response was that this is correct. Alderman Stallmann also stated the police department needs a better, safer facility; Alderman Finley agreed as well, adding they need an up-to-date facility as well.

A motion was made by Alderman Stallmann and seconded by Alderman Bullington to accept the resolution. A voice vote was taken with unanimous affirmative result and the motion passed.



January 24, 2022 7:00 PM 1 GOVERNMENT CTR. BALLWIN, MO 63011

CONSENT ITEMS

Public Works – Skidsteer Purchase

Staff recommends approval of the purchase of a skidsteer, stump grinder and bucket using the Missouri State Bid Program.

Discussion:

Alderman Roach asked if there was any advantage to using the state bid process. Public Works Director Jim Link responded with information on how the process works and that usually the price point will be better.

A motion was made by Alderman Roach and seconded by Alderman Kerlagon to approve the consent item as submitted by staff. A voice vote was taken with unanimous affirmative result and the motion passed.

MAYOR'S REPORT_____

Nothing to report

CITYADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT_____

City Administrator Sterman reported that we would with all electronic board packets beginning with the first February Board meeting (February 14). There was a delay in getting iPads for those aldermen who requested them, but we have them available now. We will also continue to email packets and, if a paper copy is needed, Mr. Sterman or Ms. Moore should be notified.

CITY ATTORNEY'S REPORT_____

Nothing to Report.

STAFF REPORT_

Parks – Golf Cart Lease

Staff recommends the Board's approval to enter into a lease agreement for 30 battery powered golf carts.

Discussion:

Park Director Chris Conway stated the cost for this came in over budget. Since there is a 10-month lead time, he reached out to the vendors regarding the trade-in price. One vendor stated they would honor their quoted price and the other stated it would be market value at the time. Alderman Roach asked if the golf carts would need to be kept in a garage; Mr. Conway stated that was not mentioned in the lease. Alderman Roach asked if the City Attorney had reviewed the lease; Mr. Conway stated he had not, but it had been reviewed internally.



January 24, 2022 7:00 PM 1 GOVERNMENT CTR. BALLWIN, MO 63011

A motion was made by Alderman Stallmann and seconded by Alderman Bullington to approve staff's recommendation. A voice vote was taken with unanimous affirmative result and the motion passed.

Police – Police Vehicles Staff is recommending the purchase of three Ford Explorers and one Ford F150 from Lou Fusz Ford for \$141,530.

Discussion:

Chief Schaeffler stated we are switching from Durangos to Explorers because the Durangos can no longer be ordered. He also stated the police department did its own bid process; the only bid received was from Lou Fusz, which is local. The state contract bidder is in Columbia, MO. The price difference between the two bids is \$150 with Lou Fusz being the higher amount. It is felt that staying with a local vendor is worth the extra cost. Alderman Stallmann stated that it makes sense to stay with the local vendor. He also asked Chief Schaeffler if he was comfortable with purchasing the Explorers; Chief Schaeffler replied that, while it is a smaller vehicle, it is comfortable and works with their needs. Chief Schaeffler also stated we will be purchasing an F150 pickup truck. Alderman Roach asked how having a person in custody would work with the truck; Chief Schaeffler responded that it is a four-door vehicle with a backseat, so it would be the same as with any other vehicle.

A motion was made by Alderman Roach and seconded by Alderman Utt to approve staff's recommendation. A voice vote was taken with unanimous affirmative result and the motion passed.

Public Works – Pavement Saw Staff is recommending the purchase of a pavement saw from Pat Kelly Equipment.

Discussion:

Public Works Director Link reported that \$30,000 has been budgeted for a pavement saw. We currently have two, but they are getting old and he would like to replace one.

A motion was made by Alderman Roach and seconded by Alderman Stallmann to approve staff's recommendation. A voice vote was taken with unanimous affirmative result and the motion passed.

ALDERMANIC COMMENTS_____

None



January 24, 2022 7:00 PM 1 GOVERNMENT CTR. BALLWIN, MO 63011

A motion was made by Alderman Fleming and seconded by Alderman Finley to adjourn. The motion was passed by unanimous affirmative voice vote and the meeting adjourned at 8:20 p.m.

TIM POGUE, MAYOR

ATTEST:

POLLY MOORE, CITY CLERK